THE HISTORY OF
ST. NORBERT PARISH

In the Beginning of the land all of which remained unincorporated

_ _ until 1988 when Northbrook annexed 778 acres of
Northfield Township was a sparsely settled e pivine Word properties.

farming community with fewer than 25 Catholic The SVD religious moved intthe Harland

families when the missionaries of the Society of the home on Prairidvenue(renamedrechnyRoad in
Divine Word arrived in 1898.The local German  1905) near the railroattacksand established St.

farmers welcomed the priests and b_rothers from Joseph'sTechnical School, where the youngsters
Steyl Holland. Reverends John Peil and Josephcoyidiearna trade as aartist, plumber, tinsmith,
Fischer and Brothers Michael, Wendelin, and capinetmaker, carpenter, printer, machinist, or

Homobonus had been sent by Fathemold electrician When the SVDs werénformed that

Janssen, founder of the Society of the Divine ihere were no Catholic churches along the route of
Word, to establish a religious foundation for the {he Chicago, Milwaukee and St. Paul Railroad,

promotion of the SVD (Societasvemi-Divini)  they realized that Catholics in the areaniro
missionary work through publications printed in Mayfair north to Deerfield and from Hubbard

bothGermanandEnglish. Woods westo Buffalo Grove did not have a place
for worship. Peter Bellerlte, owner of a harness
shop in Shermer and one of the Catholic pioneers
in the area reportedly walked 12 miles to church
eachSundy.

The missionaries were determined to find a
place for Mass and Eucharist, so Father Peil set
aside one room as a chapel in a rented cheese
factory. Oral tradition holdsthat the cheese
factory was part of Matt Conrad&tore, which
later became Happs Grocery Store on
ShermerAvenuein ShermervilléNorthbrook.

AR Lad-. = -§
Rev. Jahn Peil, Brother Michael, and Rdaseph
Fischer were among théirst members of the
Society of the Divine Ward whestallished the
Mission of theHoly Spirit, whichlater became the
parish of St Norbert.
(Photo courtesyof the Society of the Diving/ord)

Arriving in Chicago, the five SVDs were The SVDS moved into the farmer Harldramean Prairie Avenue

asked by the Archdiocese to establish a tradenextbthe railroad tracks. The Harlands operated brickyardsl an
. . ) the propertylater purchasedby the Anetsbergers.

school for orphanedCatholic boys in Northfield (Photo courtesyf the Society of the Divine Word)
Township. On March 11, the Society was
incorporated in lllinois and on Jun&5, it
purchasedthe Russell Farm- 337 acres for
$41,000. TheRussell family also donated some
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First Mass Celebrated on The chapel was situated on whHad been
Timber Roadrenamed Glenview Avenuan May
Pentecost

1900 In 1921,the State of lllinois pavethe road

On Pentecost Sunday, May 21, 1899, the first and in1924,it was rechristened Waukegdtpad
Mass was celebrated in the cheese factory. SoonOn January 16, 1901, the first requiem Mass was
a roomier but no less primitive chapel was opened offered for Henrietta BellertOn September 24 of
in a shed on Hansen's farm, property which laterthe same yeargight childrenreceived their First
became St. Ann's Home for the Aged (19®83) Communion and théollowing May 81 children
. Later that yena still larger chapel was acquired. wereconfirmed.
Umbrellas kept the congregation and the celebrant
dry when the ceilingeaked

The first child baptized in the new parish on COI’pUS Christi Processions

May 28, 1899 was Paul Michael Ries, son of By 1900, the name of St. JosephTgchnical
Nicholas and Maggie Regéties. _ School had been abbreviated tdechny to
On June 25, 1899the first marriage was gccommodate the post office and the Milwaukee
solemnized between James McCluskey and Bellaroag train station. That year, the first of many
Larivier. _ _ _ . annual religious traditions was instituted the
Early in 1900, Chicago Archbishop Patrick corpus Christi processionThese processions
Feehan authorized the formation of a parish foryere a favorite devotion of Father Arnold Janssen,
the faithful residing between the Skokie low- 5,4 he urgethis communities to intro- duce them

lands on the east and the Des Plaine®iRon the \yhenever possible because they weesternal
west The parish was to include Shermer ., nitestations of love and reverenceSi”

(incorporatedas Shermerville in 1901 and Meanwhile. train traffic continued to
Northbrook in 1923) on the north and extend as ;,.rease and i’r1903 a regular stop was added

far south as Winnetka Road . at Techny.In 1908, an extra Milwaukee Road
On December 15, 1900, the first permanent yain consisting of 16 cars brought more than

SVD building (now theTechny Post Office) on 5 n0g visitors toTechny,and on June 6, 1920,

Glenview Avenuewas completed, and the Chapel e than 5,000 Catholics assembled for the

of the Holy Spirit at St. Mary's Mission was Corpus Christiprocession.

opened for the members of the new mission

parish. Father Peil, SVD, became the firgastor

The Corpus Christi processions @t Mary's Mission House ew thousands of pilgrimeachyear.
(Postcard courtegof the Northbrook HistoricaSociety)
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The Corpus Christi processions continued for many yeass,
shownin this 1930s photdGlenview Avenubad beenpaved in
1921and renamed Waukegd&oadin 1924

Rev. Joseph Fischer, SVD, replaced Father
Peil as headof the congregationand he was
suceeded by Rev. Francis DeLan@y/D, from

1901 to1907.
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Mission Parish School

On May 11, 1901, five Holy Spirit Missionary
Sisters from Steyl, Holland, arrived to assist the
Divine Word missionaries.

Sisters Alexia, Clara, Foureria, Martina, and
Leonarda moved into a weatHeeaten frame house, a
gift from kind neighbors. In Augudbur more sisters
arrived. Although the sisters had planned to establish
an orphanage, Father Janssen, who had also founded
their order, directed them to establish a home for the
elderly.

While plans forSt Ann's Home for the Aged were
underway, two othe nuns began teaching at the little
brick schoolhouse, which opened on September 3,
1901. The bricks used for the schoolhouse were the
same as those incorporated in St. Mary's Mission
House across the roatihe infant parish had collected
about$1,000to help defray the cost of the school.

St. Joseph's Elementary School had two
classroomseachserving four gradesEvery morning
Sister Leonarda and Sister Alexia walked down
muddy GlenviewAvenueto the schoolhouseSister
Alexia and Pauline Happmonductedclasses while
Sister Leonardgaughtpiano andviolin.

On theFeast of CorpugChristi in 1 942, the Siste

ref the Holy Spirit Conventand St. Norbert School

girls formed part of the processiovhich passed through thgroundsof St Mary's Seminary
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Sister Leonarda LentrupSSp$ was
the first principal of St. Josepts
Elementaryschool
(Photo.courtesyof the Sisters of the
Holy Spirit))

Enrollment grew from 20 studenits 1901 to
30 students in 1902 to 60 students in 1910
Transportatiorio school was a problem becawse
few of the students had to walk three or four
miles, sometimes without a road fiollow.

The oldest available parish records from 1906

noted 23 familiesand Sunday collections for the
yearcame to $529.52, a total $868.51in annual
income By 1910 there were twice amany
families, but the total income for thgear
decreased to $76251. Population growth

"On financial side, therecords provide
some humorous notes. In 1906 padance
the receipts and disbursements the Pastor's
salary seems to have been the 'swing'
figure, listed at $39252 in 1906, and
$52501 in 1914. Thetotals of the two
columns thereby resulted in an exact
balance"

The clergyat Technyrelied upon the sisters
for such basic needs as laundry, cooking, and
housekeeping. The sisteslso darned socks,
sewed on buttonsand washed and mended the
clothes of the 40 boys who lived at the technical
school.

In addition to teaching at the elementary
school, the sisters staffed St. Ann's Home for the
Aged, which opened in 1903. 11911, the sisters
bought 32 acres from the Society of the Divine
Word and opened a school for home economics.
Holy Spirit Academy wa a boarding school for
young women from the Chicago area, anmehs
located aWaukegarand Willow Roads. According
to the Northbrook NewsAugust 14, 1926Holy
Spirit Academy was establishet® to give its
pupils a practical training in preparationfor a
thoroughlyusefullifed

The Academy closed in 1935

SVD Missionary Program

In 1904, Father Peil received permission
from his superiors to open a seminary because

continued in the area served by the parish, with 58there was no missionatyaining program in

familiesregistered in 1915 anahnualreceiptsof
$2,33399reported

The St. Norbert Bulletimelebrating the 75th
anniversanof the parish in 1974 read

theUnitedStatesTheDivine Word Missionaries

pioneeredecruitmentandexpandedst.Joseph's

Technical School to include a seminary for
future priests andbrothers.

StJosepts ElementarySchoolopenedn 1901and was staffedy the Sistersof theHoly Spirit. Thetwo-roomschoolhouse
accommodatedll eightgradesand wadocatedon thewest side oGlenviewAvenugWaukegan Road)it wastorn down in1986
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St. Mary's Mission House &technybecame
the first American Catholic religious community
to train religious priestandbrothers for oveseas
missionary work. On January 2, 190@st 13 days
before his death, Father Arnold Janssamally
approved St. Mary's Mission House as a seminary
There were 12 students in the seminary, and
Archbishop JamesQuigley officiated at the
dedication

The SVDs developed a sdfistaining
community at Techny The priests were
educated according to the traditional European
system of higher education, and the brothers
concentrated onlearning the manual skills
necessary in the missiofields. They raised
dairy cattle for milk, beef cattle for meat
poultry for eggs andor
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The combination school arahurch,completed in 192, was the firsbuilding of St. Norbert Parish. The
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Word Missionaries was relocated to the Catholic
Theological Union irChicago.

St. Norbert Parish

In 1917, George Cardinal Mundelein
authorized the construction of a combination
church and school on the east side of Glenview
Avenue (WaukeganRoad), about ontenth of a
mile north of the seminaryThe cornerstone of
this building was laid on May 13, 1917, and the
new building was dedicated on September 29,
1917 There were two classrooms on the first floor
and a chapel on the second floor. Aetsame
time, the name of the parish welsangedrom the
Mission of the Holy Spirit to St. NorberThe
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building nowhouses the National Mission Offices of the Society of the Divioed

slaughter They harvested wheat for flour for their
bakery and tended vegetable gardens &aod
trees. Tailors and shoemakers kept the
missionaries clothed. Thélechny community
generated its own electricity, dug wells for water
andin 1906 opened a posffice.

The fourth pastor of the mission parish was
Rev. Adolph Burgmer, SVD, who was succeeded by
Rev. Frederick Reichelt, SVD, 914.

By 1917, the seminary program had
expanded and replaced St. Josephé&chnical
School, which closed in 1920. In 1918
construction of the main buildings, including the
presentchapel was begun. The print shofhe
Mission Press,continued to produce religious
publications untiit was destroyed by fire in960.

In 1970 the major seminary of the Divine

building now houses the National Mission Center
of the Society of the Divine Word at 1835
WaukeganRoad.

The World War | years took a toll on both the
number of families and th&nances of St. Norbert
church. In 1917, 65 familiedonated$8,541 to the
annual parish income. [1920,0nly 55 families
contributed $7,005. Incomkad dwindled to
$2,128.60 in1921.

The pastor's salary reflected the modest
income of the parish. In eagli years salaries were
noted as $800 per year and remained steady until
1929 when a modest increasd $200 was
reported. In 1935, Rev. Peter Stoll, SVD,
received an annual salary of only $500.
Salaries continued to be listed at $1,000 until
1942 when the priest's stipend jumped to
$1,200
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The sanctuary of St. Norbert Churetas remodeled
several times in the 1930s and 1948shown in later
photographs

In 1930, two Sisters taught 46 pupils in
eight gradesand each received an annual salary
of $425 School registration increasednd by
1932 a third teacher was hired f6800. By
1940, the parish had grown to 110 families with
67 studentsin the school. Weekly Sunday
collections average®56, and annual receipts
totaled $8,591,with expenses listed #8,848-a
deficit of $257.

Rev. Mathias Braun, SV@lyasthe
sixth pastor of St.Norbert from
1929 to 1931

3
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The original tweroom school on thevest
side of Waukegan road was converted into a
kindergartenn 1941 ,while upper grades met in
the building on the eastde of WaukegaRoad.
Enrollment continued to increase to 117
students by 1942The four nuns who staffed the
school earned $40 per month

When the needarose for another Catholic
church in thearea, St Philip the Apostle was
established iNorthfield.

St. Norbert Parish Activities

A "1500 Club" was organized for adults
living in the neighborhood, and they planned
annual events to benefit thgarish.

Rev Joseph HolkenSVD, served ashe seventh
pastor of St. Norbert Parish from 19311635

TheCatholicWomen'sSocietymetmonthly
in the auditorium, holding card and bunco
parties, style shows, andummage sales.
Sundayafternoonbingo drew both Catholic and
nonCatholic members of the community.
Young people gathered at thEechny Theater
for plays and musicals, andsocial life
blossomed for young adults, like Louise
Nielsen and Joe Kartman who met atechny
and married in 1919.

The Holy Name Society staged annual
minstrel and talenshows.



Rev. Peter Stoll, SVD, became the
ninth pastor of St. Norbertserving
from1936to 1941.

When Rev. Peter Stoll, SVDwas appointed

In 1941 Rev. William Benz, SVD, became
pastor, and he organized the Don Bosco club
which sponsored activities for teenagers, such as
baseball,dances,and picnics atBarrenscheen's
Grove (now the Village Green). Father Benz took
the club members for ice cream, to Riverview,
and to Chicago Cubs and White Sox baseball
games.

Relocation to Northbrook

The combination church and school on
Waukegan Road remained spacious enough for
the parishioners and school children until the
1940s. Homes sprung up in the onceral
Northfield Township countryside. Population
doubled and redoubledhe pastoral farmland of
the early settlers was transformed into a bustling
suburban community.St. Norbert needed to

pastor in 1936, he brought a sense of humor to theexpand its facilities to keep up with the population
parish. He asked the men of the parish to join the€xplosion.

Holy Name Societyyhich sponsored card parties
and oldtime dances In encouragingparticipation
in parish events, Father Stoll wrote in theSt.
Norbert's Chroniclehat..."theyoungerelement of
the parishwhoare ignorant of théntricaciesofthe
squaredancewill havetheir education completed

byattendng."

In askingfor additionalfinancial support in
1941, he remarked that the treasury wasghstt
of $1 million. He appealed to the men of the
parish by adding that "we must make some

moneynourHard Timedance."

Rev William Benz,SVD, succeeded Fathestoll as

pastor from 19410 1944

His Eminence Samuel Cardinal Stritch
decided that St Norbert Parish should be
relocated fromTechnyto Northbrook. Plans for
a newschooland church were drawuap.

Father Haefner

In 1945, Rev. Charles Haefner,SVD,
becamehe pastor of St. Norbert parisdHe made
a down paymentof $500 towards a purchase
price of $20,000for land on WaltersAvenue
Despite theshortageof materialsin the years
following World War Il, the building ofa chapel,
school, and auditorium began

Financial records of St. Norbert, dated April
19, 1948show:

Amount allowed for new
buildingY YYYY Y YYY Y.Y$78,000

Costof landY..........cccevevvvennn... $20,00(
Cost of constructioly................ 250,00C
ArchitectfeesY Y....co.ccccovenn. 16,000
Contractors Bond¥ Y Y........... 2,500

Cost of land andouilding Y $288,50(
Money on Hand:

Building Fund.........c......cce..... $36,000
C.B. ofC. Note.............comruvnn... 15,00C
Equity inPresent Building....... 40,00(
Total on hand.............c........... $91,000

Projected Deficit $27,500
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